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PASEGURUHAN NG MGA NAGLILINGKOD SA PAMAHALAAN 
(GOVERNMENT SERVICE INSURANCE SYSTEM) 
Financial Center, Roxas Blvd., Pasay City, 1308 
 

 

Supplemental Bid Bulletin No.  1 
 

INSTRUCTIONS TO BIDDER AND GENERAL GUIDELINES 
on the  

SALE OF ALL GSIS SHARES IN GSIS FAMILY BANK 
 

5 May 2015 
 
NOTICE TO BIDDERS 
 
This bid bulletin is issued to give updates and clarify the issues raised by various bidders during 
and after the Pre-Bid Conference held on 29 April 2015. This shall form an integral part of the 
Bid Documents. 
 
It is conclusively presumed that in the preparation of its Bid, the Bidder has taken into account 

the information and procedures set forth in the Instructions to Bidder and General Guidelines 

and each Supplemental Bulletin. 

 QUESTIONS  ANSWERS 

 
1  

 
Regarding the valuation and due diligence as of 31 
December 2014, are we restricted or limited to this 
date? 
 

  
No. The prospective bidders are not 
restricted or limited to documents or 
transactions as of 31 December 2014. 
 

 
2  

 
How many of the shares are represented by the 
heirs of the Dragons? 
 

  
Queries about the shares held by the 
Private Stockholders can be determined 
during the due diligence of the bank. 
 

 
3  

 
In the event of a failure of bidding, will the 
subsequent bidding of GSIS Family Bank (GFB) 
shares be via negotiation already? 
 
 
What happens if only one bidder is pre-qualified by 
the Dragons? Will this be resolved by the Investment 
Bids and Awards Committee (IBAC)? 
 

  
Negotiated sale is an option, but there are 
other options which the IBAC may 
consider, subject to the approval of GSIS 
management and the Board. 
 
If the certification issued by the Heirs of 
Renato P. Dragon for the Private Minority 
Stockholders’ Shares contains only one 
potential buyer, under Section O.1.d of the 
Bidding Rules and Procedures, the IBAC 
shall no longer proceed with the opening of 
bids because it is considered as a failed 
bidding. 
 

 
4  

 
If a prospective bidder has already paid the Joining 
Fee, and then subsequently forms a consortium with 
another party who has also paid the Joining Fee, will 
the consortium be deemed as having paid only one 
Joining Fee so that the Php75,000 fee paid by the 
other will be refunded? 
 
 

  
The Joining Fee is non-refundable and 
non-transferrable. The newly-formed 
consortium should pay a separate Joining 
Fee. 
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 QUESTIONS  ANSWERS 

 
 
5  

 
 
Regarding the BSP incentive which allows GFB to 
retain its thrift banking license if the winning Third 
Party Investor (TPI) is a commercial bank (Section 
II.E.3, Page 4 of the Bidding Rules and Procedures). 
Assuming the winning bidder is not a commercial 
bank, will GFB still be allowed to retain its thrift 
banking license? 
 
 

  
 
Yes.  

 
6  

 
We understand that the sale is subject to the 
condition that the remaining shares of GFB 
belonging to the Private Stockholders shall likewise 
be sold to the same buyer of GSIS shares through a 
separate negotiation/agreement. Will GSIS assist in 
the negotiation with the Private Stockholders? 
 
Is there a timeline that we are looking at so that we 
can close a deal with the Private Stockholders? 
 

  
No.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
The prospective bidders should negotiate 
and agree with the Private Stockholders 
before the bid date (25 May 2015) to be 
included in the Certification issued by the 
Heirs of Renato P. Dragon as to potential 
buyers for the Private Minority 
Stockholders’ Shares. 
 

 
7  

 
For foreign entity bidders, what documents are 
acceptable alternatives of the BIR Certificate of 
Registration or the taxpayer’s identification number? 
 

  
For foreign entity bidders, the equivalent 
internal revenue or registration documents 
(in English) duly authenticated by the 
Philippine Consulate in the country of 
domicile of the Prospective Bidder may be 
submitted for evaluation of the IBAC. 
 

 
8  

 
May we confirm the foreign ownership limitations for 
any winning bidder who does not have a banking 
license? We understand that a winning foreign 
bidder can only own up to 60% of the shares in 
GFB. Is this correct? 
 

  
No. A foreign non-bank in consortium with 
a Filipino entity may be a winning bidder 
and own all the GSIS’ shares in GFB. A 
foreign non-bank may have a maximum 
40% share in the consortium. Please refer 
to BSP Circular Number 858 Series of 
2014 for details. 
 

 
 
9  

 
 
We understand that there will be no separate fee to 
be charged for the 20 branch licenses and other 
incentives. Is this correct? 
 
 

  
 
Awaiting clarification from the BSP. 
 
 

 
10  

 
Regarding the BSP incentive granting GFB the 
authority to accept government deposits from the 
GSIS. Is the approval already existing or will only be 
applied in the future once a bidder wins the bidding? 
 
Are subsidiaries of GSIS covered by this incentive? 
 
 

  
The GFB has an existing authority from the 
BSP to accept deposits from the GSIS until 
revoked by the BSP.   
 
 
The GSIS does not have any other 
subsidiary.  
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 QUESTIONS  ANSWERS 

 
11  

 
When can we get a copy of the Share Purchase 
Agreement so that we can give our comments on or 
before 13 May 2015? 
 

  
The draft of the Share Purchase 
Agreement will be provided by the IBAC 
Secretariat on 8 May 2015.  The deadline 
for submission of comments will be on 18 
May 2015. 
 

 
12  

 
Will all other unresolved issues with respect to the 
Dragons’ alleged shares be resolved with the 
Dragons separate from the IBAC? 
 

  
Yes. 
 

 
13  

 
It seems that there will be two (2) awards – one by 
the IBAC and the other by the private stockholders 
represented by the Heirs of Renato P. Dragon. We 
thought there is only one (1) awarding panel which is 
the IBAC? 
  

  
There is only one (1) award from the IBAC 
for all equity shares of the GSIS subject to 
the conditions specified in the Bidding 
Rules and Procedures. 
 

 
14  

 
We understand that the remaining shares are owned 
by the Dragons, but not necessarily the entire 
Dragons. Who will deal with these interests that 
have not been represented by the Dragons? 
 

  
The IBAC is only limited to the bidding of 
all equity shares of GSIS. 
 
 

 
15  

 
The tax clearance issued by the BIR for Robinsons 
Bank is only for 2011. Can this be waived?  The 
Bank has had 3 acquisitions in the past already 
(ABN-Amro, Royal Bank of Scotland, & Legazpi 
Savings Bank).  Much as we would like to have been 
cleared until 2013, apparently, this is not possible at 
the moment. 
 

  
No. 
 

 
16 

 
We see that there’s about Php500 million of GSIS 
deposits at 1.5%p.a. As a concession, can we 
request that GSIS not pull out its money over the 
next 5 years to give ample time for the winning 
bidder to generate enough funds to cover this? 

  
The IBAC has no authority to make such 
concession. 

    

 

Note that as announced during the Pre-Bid Conference, the Minimum Bid Price of all the GSIS 

shares in GFB is Five Hundred One Million Pesos (Php501,000,000.00). 

 

The Bidders are enjoined to visit the GSIS Website (www.gsis.gov.ph) on a regular basis for 

updates or Supplemental Bid Bulletins. 

 

For guidance and information of all concerned. 

 

 

(Sgd) SEVERINA L. RESURRECCION 

Chairperson 

Investment Bids and Awards Committee 


